
COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

JIM NIELSEN, VICE CHAIR  

JIM BEALL 

ANNA M. CABALLERO 
BRIAN DAHLE 

MARIA ELENA DURAZO 

MELISSA HURTADO 
CONNIE M. LEYVA 

MIKE MCGUIRE 

MELISSA A. MELENDEZ 
BILL MONNING 

JOHN M.W. MOORLACH 

MIKE MORRELL 
RICHARD PAN 

RICHARD D. ROTH  

NANCY SKINNER 
HENRY STERN 

BOB WIECKOWSKI 

CALIFORNIA STATE SENATE 

 
COMMITTEE ON BUDGET AND FISCAL REVIEW 

 

STATE CAPITOL – ROOM 5019 

SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 

 

 
 

Holly J. Mitchell, Chair 
 

STAFF DIRECTOR 

JOE STEPHENSHAW 

 

DEPUTY STAFF DIRECTOR 
ELISA WYNNE 

 

CONSULTANTS 
CHRISTOPHER FRANCIS 

JAMES HACKER 

ANITA LEE 
SCOTT OGUS 

RENITA POLK 

JOANNE ROY 
YONG SALES  

 

COMMITTEE ASSISTANTS 
SANDY PEREZ 

SAMUEL LANCHESTER 

 
PHONE (916) 651-4103 

FAX (916) 668-7004 

 

Legislative Intent—Senate Bill No. 98 
 

Erika Contreras 

Secretary of the Senate  

State Capitol, Room 3044 Sacramento, California  

 

Dear Ms. Contreras: 

 

This letter is to clarify the intent of Section 94 of SB 98, which provides as follows:  

 

From July 1, 2020, to June 30, 2021, inclusive, the governing board of a school district, 

county office of education, community college district, or joint powers authority shall not 

implement layoffs or releases of any permanent or probationary classified employees of 

the school district, county office of education, community college district, or joint powers 

authority who hold classifications in, or are assigned to positions in, nutrition, 

transportation, or custodial services. 

 

The word “implement” refers to the actual effectuation of layoffs between July 1, 2020, to June 

30, 2021, which includes layoffs for which notice was given to employees between May 2, 2020 

and the time up to and including July 1, 2020. If as of July 1, 2020, a school district, county 

office of education, community college district, or joint powers authority has provided a layoff 

notice to an employee covered by this section, but the 60-day notice period has not concluded, 

then the employer is barred from carrying out the layoff from July 1, 2020, to June 30, 2021. 

 

Thank you for this opportunity to clarify the intent.    

 

Respectfully,  

 

 

 

 

Holly J. Mitchell 

Chair 


